






 

                             
AGENDA ITEM: WS-2 

  
                                                   CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA MEMO 

Prepared By: Susan Greenwood, Municipal Court Administrator                                   March 20, 2023 

Municipal Court Judge and Prosecutor                                                           
  
DESCRIPTION: 
 
Receive a report and hold a discussion regarding the reviewing of resumes for Municipal Court 
Judge and Municipal Court Prosecutor.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The City Council had a work session discussion on becoming a court of record February 6, 2023, 
meeting. Staff was directed to bring back an ordinance for the creation of a Municipal Court of 
Record. 
 
On February 20, 2023, the council approved Ordinance 2023-04-106 amending Chapter 2, 
“Administration and Personnel”, Article 2.06, “Municipal Court”, Division 1, “Generally”, of the 
City of New Fairview Code of Ordinances, by repealing Division 1 in its entirety and adding a new 
“Division 1”, establishing the Municipal Court as a Court of Record. 
 
When becoming a court of record, it is required that the Judge have a Juris Doctorate, and be a 
licensed attorney in the State of Texas and in good standing with the Texas State Bar. It is a 
preference to have been practicing law for at least two (2) years prior to appointment, and have 
five (5) years of experience with the majority of which in criminal law, and must be a qualified 
voter and hold a valid Texas driver’s license.  
 
The City of New Fairview Municipal Court Judge is a contract position (non-employee) and 
appointed by a majority vote of the City Council. The Judge’s term is by contract only. The Judge is 
considered an Independent Contractor and reports to the City Council. 
 
The Municipal Court Prosecutor must also be appointed by the Council in order to prosecute. 
They must have a Juris Doctorate, with a license to practice law in the State of Texas, and in good 
standing with the Texas State Bar. Staff has advertised the position of the Municipal Court Judge 
and the Municipal Court Prosecutor on the Texas Municipal League (TML) website, and reached 
out to several Municipal Court Judges and Prosecutors to bring in qualified applicants. 
 
Staff has provided you with resumes and quotes that have been received for both the Municipal 
Court Judge and Municipal Court Prosecutor. Staff would like some direction on which individuals 
we should work on entering into contract with for these two positions and bringing those 
contracts back for City Council consideration. 



 

 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 
 
None, discussion only. 

RECOMMENDED MOTIONS: 
 
None, discussion only. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
Resumes for Judge 

- Caprice Garcia 
- Gregg Shalan 
- JC Petty  
- Bojorquez Law Firm  

 
Resumes for Prosecutor 

- Karen Alexander 
- Antonio Gabilondo 
- Bojorquez Law Firm  
- Wyatt Hamilton Findlay, PLLC 

 
 

 



 
City of New Fairview 

City Council  
Regular Meeting 

Minutes 
March 6, 2023 

 
CITY COUNCIL  

Mayor Pro Tem Steven King  
Place 1 Councilman Harvey Lynn Burger 

Place 3 Councilman Walter Clements 
Place 5 Councilman Richard Greene 

 
City Staff 

Brooke Boller, City Secretary  
Susan Greenwood, Assistant City Secretary  

Roberta (Robin) Cross, City Attorney  
 

Absent 
Mayor John Taylor  

Place 2 Councilman Peter Kozlowski 
John Cabrales Jr, City Administrator 

 
 

 
WORK SESSION 

 
1. Call to Order and Determination of Quorum (Work Session called to order by Mayor Pro Tem Steven King at 

7:03 pm; Roll Call with the above-mentioned names.) 
 

1. Receive a report and hold a discussion regarding the reviewing of resumes for Municipal Court Judge 
and Municipal Court Prosecutor. 
Court Administrator Susan Greenwood gave a presentation on what the City Courts needs are and 
what the future for the court looks like. Council went over candidates and spoke with two 
candidates that came to the meeting. Council has advised staff to place this on a future work session 
to discuss applicants with all council members present.  
 

2. Executive Session: Recess to Executive Session to discuss matters relating to real property pursuant to 
§551.072, Texas Government Code; deliberation of economic development negotiations pursuant to 
§551.087, Texas Government Code; discuss personnel matters pursuant to §551.074, Texas 
Government Code; discuss IT network or critical infrastructure security pursuant to §551.089, Texas 
Government Code; and to consult with the City Attorney pursuant to §551.071, Texas Government 
Code. The Council may go into closed session at any time when permitted by Chapter 551, Texas 
Government Code or Chapter 418, Texas Tax Code. Before going into closed session, a quorum of the 
Council must be present, the meeting must be convened as an open meeting pursuant to proper 



notice, the presiding officer must announce that a closed session will be held and must identify the 
sections of Chapter 551 or 418, Texas Government Code authorizing the closed session. 

 
3. Adjournment 

Motion: Councilman Walter Clements 
Second: Councilman Richard Greene 
Vote: All in Favor 
Result: Work session adjourned at 7:23pm 

 
REGULAR SESSION 

 
1. Call to Order and Determination of Quorum (Regular Session called to order by Mayor Pro Tem Steven 

King at 7:24pm; Roll Call with the above-mentioned names.) 
 

2. Pledge to the Flags. 
A. United States of America 
B. Texas Flag Honor the Texas Flag, I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one 

and indivisible. 
 

3. Announcements & Special Recognitions: The agenda shall provide a time when proclamations, 
recognitions, general reports, and updates may be presented by the City Council. 

 
4. City Administrator’s Report: The City Administrator’s Report may provide information on status of 

current city projects and other projects affecting the City, meetings and actions of the city’s boards and 
commissions, upcoming local community events, including but not limited to departmental operations 
and capital improvement project status. No action will be taken with respect to this report. 

 
5.  Public Comment: The City Council invites persons with comments or observations related to city 

issues, projects, or policies to briefly address the City Council. Anyone wishing to speak should sign-in 
with the City Secretary before the beginning of the City Council Meeting. In order to expedite the flow 
of business and to provide all citizens the opportunity to speak, there is a three-minute limitation on 
any person addressing the City Council. State law prohibits the City Council from discussing or taking 
action on any item not listed on the posted agenda. 

 
6. Consent Agenda: All matters as Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and 

will be enacted by one motion. An item can be removed from the consent agenda by the City 
Administrator, Mayor, or any member of the City Council and will be considered after approval of the 
consent agenda. 

 
A. Approve the City Council Meeting minutes for February 20, 2023. 

Motion: Councilman Walter Clements 
Second: Councilman Richard Green 
Vote: All in Favor 
Result: City Council minutes for February 20, 2023 were approved.  
 
 
 
 
 



 
7. New Business: All matters listed in New Business will be discussed and considered separately. 

 
A. Receive, consider, and act on a Resolution awarding the Drainage Improvement project for 

Stewart Street, and the City Park located at 150 Stewart Street, to 3H Concrete Inc. for a total of 
$23,690, and establish a not-to-exceed project contingency of $2,400. 
Motion: Councilman Richard Greene 
Second: Councilman Walter Clements 
Vote: All in Favor  
Result: Council approved a Resolution awarding the Drainage Improvement project for 
Stewart Street, and the City Park located at 150 Stewart Street, to 3H Concrete Inc. for a total 
of $23,690, and establish a not-to-exceed project contingency of $2,400 

 
B. Receive, consider, and act on an Ordinance amending Chapter 5, Business Regulations, by 

adding Article 5.07, Home Solicitor Registration, Sections 5.01.001- 5.07.011, creating a 
vendor/solicitation registration program. 
Motion: Councilman Walter Clements  
Second: Councilman Richard Greene 
Vote: All in Favor 
Result: Council approved an Ordinance amending Chapter 5, Business Regulations, by adding 
Article 5.07, Home Solicitor Registration, Sections 5.01.001- 5.07.011, creating a 
vendor/solicitation registration program. 

 
C. Receive, consider, and act on appointing members to the Parks and Recreation Board and the 

Keep New Fairview Beautiful Committee. 
Motion: Councilman Walter Clements 
Second: Councilman Richard Greene 
Vote: All in Favor 
Result: Council appointed Deborah Greene to the Parks & Recreation Board.  

 
8. Executive Session: Recess to Executive Session to discuss matters relating to real property pursuant to 

§551.072, Texas Government Code; deliberation of economic development negotiations pursuant to 
§551.087, Texas Government Code; discuss personnel matters pursuant to §551.074, Texas 
Government Code; discuss IT network or critical infrastructure security pursuant to §551.089, Texas 
Government Code; and to consult with the City Attorney pursuant to §551.071, Texas Government 
Code. The Council may go into closed session at any time when permitted by Chapter 551, Texas 
Government Code or Chapter 418, Texas Tax Code. Before going into closed session, a quorum of the 
Council must be present, the meeting must be convened as an open meeting pursuant to proper 
notice, the presiding officer must announce that a closed session will be held and must identify the 
sections of Chapter 551 or 418, Texas Government Code authorizing the closed session. 

 
9. Return to Open Session: Discuss and take appropriate action, if any, resulting from the discussions 

conducted in Executive Session. 
 

10. Mayor & Council Member Announcements: The City Council may hear or make reports of community 
interest provided no action is taken or discussed. Community interest items may include information 
regarding upcoming schedules of events, honorary recognitions, and announcements involving 
imminent public health and safety threats to the city. Any deliberation shall be limited to a proposal to 
place the subject on an agenda for a subsequent meeting. 



 
 
 
 

11. Adjournment 
Motion: Councilman Walter Clements 
Second: Mayor Pro Tem Steven King 
Vote: All in Favor 
Result: Work session adjourned at 7:47pm.  

 
 
 
 

MINUTES APPROVED ON THIS, THE 20TH DAY OF MARCH 2023 
 
 
 
 

___________________________________       _____________________________________ 
John Taylor, Mayor      Brooke Boller, City Secretary 



Current Period
Feb 2023
Feb 2023

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Feb 2023

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

Revenue & Expenditures
Revenue

Revenues
Fines & Fees

4501     Court Fines                   394.00 3,837.93 20,000.00 (16,162.07) 19.19%
Total Fines & Fees $394.00 $3,837.93 $20,000.00 ($16,162.07)

Franchise Fees
4301     Franchise Fees                58,226.42 70,123.43 50,000.00 20,123.43 140.25%

Total Franchise Fees $58,226.42 $70,123.43 $50,000.00 $20,123.43
Other Revenue

4901     Other Revenue                 12,599.90 27,719.13 154,000.00 (126,280.87) 18.00%
4906     Sponsorship                   0.00 2,031.10 5,000.00 (2,968.90) 40.62%

Total Other Revenue $12,599.90 $29,750.23 $159,000.00 ($129,249.77)
Permits

4401     Construction Permits          9,873.72 88,968.63 500,000.00 (411,031.37) 17.79%
4403     Contractor Registration       515.00 1,954.00 3,600.00 (1,646.00) 54.28%
4402     Septic Permits                844.60 5,813.80 14,000.00 (8,186.20) 41.53%

Total Permits $11,233.32 $96,736.43 $517,600.00 ($420,863.57)
Property Tax

4101     Current Property Tax          256,746.80 741,174.42 656,790.05 84,384.37 112.85%
Total Property Tax $256,746.80 $741,174.42 $656,790.05 $84,384.37

Sales Tax
4201     Sales/ Beverage Tax           31,545.72 195,349.79 378,000.00 (182,650.21) 51.68%

Total Sales Tax $31,545.72 $195,349.79 $378,000.00 ($182,650.21)
Revenues Totals $370,746.16 $1,136,972.23 $1,781,390.05 ($644,417.82)

Revenue $370,746.16 $1,136,972.23 $1,781,390.05 ($644,417.82)
Gross Profit $370,746.16 $1,136,972.23 $1,781,390.05  

Expenses
City Administration

Contract Labor
5101     Contract Labor                1,740.80 3,900.80 6,240.00 2,339.20 62.51%
5111     Information Technology        605.36 3,026.80 8,000.00 4,973.20 37.84%
5108     Legal Expenses                26,204.90 37,707.10 50,000.00 12,292.90 75.41%
5113     Website                       0.00  10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00%

Total Contract Labor $28,551.06 $44,634.70 $74,240.00 $29,605.30

3/27/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 1 of 9
2:54 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Current Period
Feb 2023
Feb 2023

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Feb 2023

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

Salaries & Payroll
5011     Deferred Compensation         0.00 22,412.00 6,000.00 (16,412.00) 373.53%
5007     FICA - Payroll Taxes          0.00  9,157.05 9,157.05 0.00%
5006     Health Insurance              855.62 5,912.68 10,740.96 4,828.28 55.05%
5004     Longevity Pay                 0.00 100.00 100.00  100.00%
5012     LTD, STD and Life             0.00  456.00 456.00 0.00%
5001     Salaries                      9,440.08 77,938.48 119,700.00 41,761.52 65.11%
5005     TMRS                          603.32 10,480.54 7,636.86 (2,843.68) 137.24%
5010     Unemployment                  0.00  3,591.00 3,591.00 0.00%
5008     Worker's Comp                 0.00 3.89 400.00 396.11 0.97%

Total Salaries & Payroll $10,899.02 $116,847.59 $157,781.87 $40,934.28
Services

5340     Auditor                       0.00  7,000.00 7,000.00 0.00%
5375     Chapter 380                   0.00  84,000.00 84,000.00 0.00%
5361     Credit Card Fees              369.15 1,159.85 20,000.00 18,840.15 5.80%
5315     Electric / Trash              263.34 603.85 2,000.00 1,396.15 30.19%
5320     Equipment Rental              0.00 258.00 500.00 242.00 51.60%
5335     Internet/Telephone            109.68 1,086.38 1,500.00 413.62 72.43%
5305     Legal Notices                 0.00 187.50  (187.50) 0.00%
5355     Miscellaneous Expense         574.75 1,332.46 33,618.00 32,285.54 3.96%
5365     Penalties Expense             0.00  1,200.00 1,200.00 0.00%
5350     Professional Services         0.00 50.00 5,000.00 4,950.00 1.00%
5360     Prop Tax Collection Fees      0.00 4,324.94 14,200.00 9,875.06 30.46%
5310     Software                      980.01 5,986.18 15,500.00 9,513.82 38.62%
5380     TML Insurance                 10,740.00 16,196.40 8,430.20 (7,766.20) 192.12%
5322     Training/ Dues/ Memberships  1,252.00 3,938.54 4,600.00 661.46 85.62%

Total Services $14,288.93 $35,124.10 $197,548.20 $162,424.10
Supplies

5202     Equipment                     271.45 271.45 500.00 228.55 54.29%
5299     Miscellaneous Supplies        0.00 298.91 500.00 201.09 59.78%
5201     Office Supplies               0.00 1,189.53 2,500.00 1,310.47 47.58%
5207     Postage                       0.00 31.40  (31.40) 0.00%

Total Supplies $271.45 $1,791.29 $3,500.00 $1,708.71
City Administration Totals $54,010.46 $198,397.68 $433,070.07 $234,672.39

3/27/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 2 of 9
2:54 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Current Period
Feb 2023
Feb 2023

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Feb 2023

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

City Council
Contract Labor

5108     Legal Expenses                4,819.50 12,043.50 15,000.00 2,956.50 80.29%
Total Contract Labor $4,819.50 $12,043.50 $15,000.00 $2,956.50

Services
5370     Election Expense              0.00 1,130.15 5,000.00 3,869.85 22.60%
5310     Software                      0.00  120.00 120.00 0.00%
5322     Training/ Dues/ Memberships  350.00 3,313.85 15,000.00 11,686.15 22.09%

Total Services $350.00 $4,444.00 $20,120.00 $15,676.00
Supplies

5299     Miscellaneous Supplies        34.68 250.17 300.00 49.83 83.39%
5201     Office Supplies               0.00 161.16 2,000.00 1,838.84 8.06%

Total Supplies $34.68 $411.33 $2,300.00 $1,888.67
City Council Totals $5,204.18 $16,898.83 $37,420.00 $20,521.17

City Secretary
Contract Labor

5108     Legal Expenses                2,682.00 3,632.00 10,000.00 6,368.00 36.32%
Total Contract Labor $2,682.00 $3,632.00 $10,000.00 $6,368.00

Salaries & Payroll
5007     FICA - Payroll Taxes          339.84 1,853.72 4,417.88 2,564.16 41.96%
5006     Health Insurance              855.62 5,912.65 10,740.96 4,828.31 55.05%
5004     Longevity Pay                 0.00 208.00 64.00 (144.00) 325.00%
5012     LTD, STD and Life             0.00  945.34 945.34 0.00%
5001     Salaries                      4,442.32 24,374.89 57,750.00 33,375.11 42.21%
5005     TMRS                          305.64 2,545.22 3,684.45 1,139.23 69.08%
5008     Worker's Comp                 0.00 3.88 320.00 316.12 1.21%

Total Salaries & Payroll $5,943.42 $34,898.36 $77,922.63 $43,024.27
Services

5315     Electric / Trash              263.34 603.78 2,000.00 1,396.22 30.19%
5320     Equipment Rental              0.00 170.00 1,000.00 830.00 17.00%
5335     Internet/Telephone            67.16 335.83 1,000.00 664.17 33.58%
5305     Legal Notices                 0.00 1,705.00 2,000.00 295.00 85.25%
5355     Miscellaneous Expense         574.75 780.29  (780.29) 0.00%
5310     Software                      56.94 116.45 7,695.00 7,578.55 1.51%
5322     Training/ Dues/ Memberships  295.00 2,216.20 7,500.00 5,283.80 29.55%

Total Services $1,257.19 $5,927.55 $21,195.00 $15,267.45

3/27/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 3 of 9
2:54 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Current Period
Feb 2023
Feb 2023

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Feb 2023

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

Supplies
5202     Equipment                     271.45 271.45 500.00 228.55 54.29%
5299     Miscellaneous Supplies        0.00 42.50 1,000.00 957.50 4.25%
5201     Office Supplies               19.79 356.01 2,000.00 1,643.99 17.80%
5207     Postage                       11.45 21.65 400.00 378.35 5.41%

Total Supplies $302.69 $691.61 $3,900.00 $3,208.39
City Secretary Totals $10,185.30 $45,149.52 $113,017.63 $67,868.11

Court
Contract Labor

5108     Legal Expenses                1,475.20 3,476.20 5,000.00 1,523.80 69.52%
5106     Municipal Judge               0.00 1,050.00 2,400.00 1,350.00 43.75%

Total Contract Labor $1,475.20 $4,526.20 $7,400.00 $2,873.80
Salaries & Payroll

5007     FICA - Payroll Taxes          0.00  3,842.75 3,842.75 0.00%
5006     Health Insurance              855.62 4,070.08 10,740.96 6,670.88 37.89%
5004     Longevity Pay                 0.00 100.00 64.00 (36.00) 156.25%
5012     LTD, STD and Life             0.00  561.70 561.70 0.00%
5003     Overtime                      0.00 459.40 5,000.00 4,540.60 9.19%
5001     Salaries                      3,339.12 20,643.60 50,232.00 29,588.40 41.10%
5005     TMRS                          213.41 2,046.90 3,204.80 1,157.90 63.87%
5008     Worker's Comp                 0.00 3.88 320.00 316.12 1.21%

Total Salaries & Payroll $4,408.15 $27,323.86 $73,966.21 $46,642.35
Services

5315     Electric / Trash              263.33 603.77 2,000.00 1,396.23 30.19%
5320     Equipment Rental              0.00 170.00 2,000.00 1,830.00 8.50%
5335     Internet/Telephone            67.16 335.80 1,000.00 664.20 33.58%
5355     Miscellaneous Expense         574.75 3,548.69 10,000.00 6,451.31 35.49%
5325     Municipal Judge Training      0.00  350.00 350.00 0.00%
5350     Professional Services         0.00 185.40 1,000.00 814.60 18.54%
5322     Training/ Dues/ Memberships  0.00 609.95 2,450.00 1,840.05 24.90%

Total Services $905.24 $5,453.61 $18,800.00 $13,346.39
Supplies

5202     Equipment                     271.45 271.45 500.00 228.55 54.29%
5299     Miscellaneous Supplies        0.00 42.50 500.00 457.50 8.50%
5201     Office Supplies               5.99 264.37 1,500.00 1,235.63 17.62%
5207     Postage                       0.00  500.00 500.00 0.00%

3/27/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 4 of 9
2:54 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Current Period
Feb 2023
Feb 2023

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Feb 2023

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

5222     Signs                         0.00  500.00 500.00 0.00%
Total Supplies $277.44 $578.32 $3,500.00 $2,921.68

Court Totals $7,066.03 $37,881.99 $103,666.21 $65,784.22
Health/Code Enforcement

Contract Labor
5112     Abatement                     0.00  15,000.00 15,000.00 0.00%
5104     Animal Control                50.00 400.00 2,000.00 1,600.00 20.00%
5108     Legal Expenses                705.00 2,373.00 3,000.00 627.00 79.10%
5103     Septic Inspector              0.00 1,150.00 5,500.00 4,350.00 20.91%

Total Contract Labor $755.00 $3,923.00 $25,500.00 $21,577.00
Services

5390     Cleanup Days                  0.00 138.00 2,475.00 2,337.00 5.58%
5320     Equipment Rental              0.00  1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00%
5310     Software                      0.00  1,400.00 1,400.00 0.00%
5322     Training/ Dues/ Memberships  0.00  1,760.00 1,760.00 0.00%

Total Services $0.00 $138.00 $6,635.00 $6,497.00
Supplies

5299     Miscellaneous Supplies        0.00 106.95  (106.95) 0.00%
5207     Postage                       16.50 16.50  (16.50) 0.00%
5222     Signs                         0.00 121.98  (121.98) 0.00%

Total Supplies $16.50 $245.43  ($245.43)
Health/Code Enforcement Totals $771.50 $4,306.43 $32,135.00 $27,828.57

Parks & Recreation
Services

5385     Building Repairs              0.00  500.00 500.00 0.00%
5320     Equipment Rental              0.00  4,000.00 4,000.00 0.00%
5355     Miscellaneous Expense         0.00 219.91 4,000.00 3,780.09 5.50%
5304     Special Events                512.35 4,913.89 10,500.00 5,586.11 46.80%

Total Services $512.35 $5,133.80 $19,000.00 $13,866.20
Supplies

5202     Equipment                     0.00  1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00%
5299     Miscellaneous Supplies        0.00  500.00 500.00 0.00%
5201     Office Supplies               0.00  500.00 500.00 0.00%

Total Supplies $0.00  $2,000.00 $2,000.00
Parks & Recreation Totals $512.35 $5,133.80 $21,000.00 $15,866.20

3/27/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 5 of 9
2:54 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Current Period
Feb 2023
Feb 2023

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Feb 2023

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

Planning & Development
City Projects

5655     CDBG                          3,587.55 3,850.05  (3,850.05) 0.00%
Total City Projects $3,587.55 $3,850.05  ($3,850.05)

Contract Labor
5105     Building Inspector            6,055.00 24,030.00 60,000.00 35,970.00 40.05%
5109     City Engineer                 2,201.19 12,162.13 25,000.00 12,837.87 48.65%
5110     City Planner                  0.00 15,410.91 40,000.00 24,589.09 38.53%
5108     Legal Expenses                0.00  5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00%
5102     Public Infrastructure         525.00 525.00  (525.00) 0.00%

Total Contract Labor $8,781.19 $52,128.04 $130,000.00 $77,871.96
Services

5355     Miscellaneous Expense         0.00 292.00  (292.00) 0.00%
5350     Professional Services         0.00 3,048.20 15,700.00 12,651.80 19.42%
5310     Software                      0.00  700.00 700.00 0.00%

Total Services $0.00 $3,340.20 $16,400.00 $13,059.80
Supplies

5201     Office Supplies               0.00 580.06 1,500.00 919.94 38.67%
Total Supplies $0.00 $580.06 $1,500.00 $919.94

Planning & Development Totals $12,368.74 $59,898.35 $147,900.00 $88,001.65
Public Safety

Capital Outlay
6030     Buildings - Capital           0.00 14,977.14 17,270.00 2,292.86 86.72%
6060     Buildings - Extractor         0.00 1,498.91 10,450.00 8,951.09 14.34%

Total Capital Outlay $0.00 $16,476.05 $27,720.00 $11,243.95
City Projects

5645     EMS Buildout                  0.00 100.66  (100.66) 0.00%
Total City Projects $0.00 $100.66  ($100.66)

Contract Labor
5107     Contract Deputies             1,248.78 7,154.74 44,000.00 36,845.26 16.26%
5101     Contract Labor                2,950.00 15,250.00 37,400.00 22,150.00 40.78%

Total Contract Labor $4,198.78 $22,404.74 $81,400.00 $58,995.26
Services

5385     Building Repairs              0.00 2,077.21  (2,077.21) 0.00%
5322     Training/ Dues/ Memberships  2,457.00 2,635.00 2,200.00 (435.00) 119.77%

Total Services $2,457.00 $4,712.21 $2,200.00 ($2,512.21)

3/27/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 6 of 9
2:54 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Current Period
Feb 2023
Feb 2023

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Feb 2023

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

Supplies
5202     Equipment                     0.00 200.95  (200.95) 0.00%
5201     Office Supplies               0.00 166.97  (166.97) 0.00%

Total Supplies $0.00 $367.92  ($367.92)
Public Safety Totals $6,655.78 $44,061.58 $111,320.00 $67,258.42

Public Works
Capital Outlay

6030     Buildings - Capital           0.00  35,000.00 35,000.00 0.00%
6020     Equipment - Capital           41,890.00 41,890.00 92,000.00 50,110.00 45.53%
6010     Vehicles - Capital            0.00  65,000.00 65,000.00 0.00%

Total Capital Outlay $41,890.00 $41,890.00 $192,000.00 $150,110.00
City Projects

5655     CDBG                          1,425.00 10,908.38  (10,908.38) 0.00%
5635     CR 4717                       0.00 22,624.90  (22,624.90) 0.00%
5630     TDLR                          0.00 10,709.50 10,300.00 (409.50) 103.98%

Total City Projects $1,425.00 $44,242.78 $10,300.00 ($33,942.78)
Contract Labor

5105     Building Inspector            0.00  750.00 750.00 0.00%
5101     Contract Labor                0.00  15,000.00 15,000.00 0.00%
5102     Public Infrastructure         0.00 375.00 5,000.00 4,625.00 7.50%

Total Contract Labor $0.00 $375.00 $20,750.00 $20,375.00
Salaries & Payroll

5007     FICA - Payroll Taxes          0.00  8,103.19 8,103.19 0.00%
5006     Health Insurance              1,711.24 6,768.30 21,481.92 14,713.62 31.51%
5004     Longevity Pay                 0.00 136.00 64.00 (72.00) 212.50%
5012     LTD, STD and Life             0.00  1,890.67 1,890.67 0.00%
5003     Overtime                      372.26 2,794.98 5,000.00 2,205.02 55.90%
5001     Salaries                      12,017.16 47,879.76 105,924.00 58,044.24 45.20%
5005     TMRS                          829.40 3,676.97 6,757.95 3,080.98 54.41%
5010     Unemployment                  0.00  3,177.72 3,177.72 0.00%
5008     Worker's Comp                 0.00 3.89 640.00 636.11 0.61%

Total Salaries & Payroll $14,930.06 $61,259.90 $153,039.45 $91,779.55
Services

5385     Building Repairs              2,543.52 3,228.58 15,000.00 11,771.42 21.52%
5315     Electric / Trash              1,594.75 3,904.07 12,000.00 8,095.93 32.53%
5320     Equipment Rental              0.00 1,497.28 5,000.00 3,502.72 29.95%
5301     Fuel                          386.14 3,397.42 8,000.00 4,602.58 42.47%

3/27/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 7 of 9
2:54 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Current Period
Feb 2023
Feb 2023

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Feb 2023

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

5335     Internet/Telephone            0.00  1,030.00 1,030.00 0.00%
5355     Miscellaneous Expense         634.75 639.24 1,500.00 860.76 42.62%
5395     Road Maintenance              16,505.37 20,772.31 50,000.00 29,227.69 41.54%
5345     Street Lights                 484.80 2,160.43 11,940.00 9,779.57 18.09%
5303     Tolls                         0.00  50.00 50.00 0.00%
5302     Tractor/ Truck Repairs        427.55 1,316.37 8,000.00 6,683.63 16.45%
5322     Training/ Dues/ Memberships  692.00 1,122.00 4,410.00 3,288.00 25.44%

Total Services $23,268.88 $38,037.70 $116,930.00 $78,892.30
Supplies

5202     Equipment                     50.18 2,796.47 7,500.00 4,703.53 37.29%
5299     Miscellaneous Supplies        439.08 732.04 2,000.00 1,267.96 36.60%
5201     Office Supplies               0.00 228.06 3,000.00 2,771.94 7.60%
5207     Postage                       0.00  500.00 500.00 0.00%
5222     Signs                         257.55 552.83 8,000.00 7,447.17 6.91%
5203     Uniforms                      1,604.98 1,740.94 3,500.00 1,759.06 49.74%

Total Supplies $2,351.79 $6,050.34 $24,500.00 $18,449.66
Public Works Totals $83,865.73 $191,855.72 $517,519.45 $325,663.73

Revenues
City Projects

5650     LED Lights                    0.00 (3,014.59)  3,014.59 0.00%
Total City Projects $0.00 ($3,014.59)  $3,014.59

Services
5322     Training/ Dues/ Memberships  0.00 (40.70)  40.70 0.00%

Total Services $0.00 ($40.70)  $40.70
Revenues Totals $0.00 ($3,055.29)  $3,055.29

Expenses $180,640.07 $600,528.61 $1,517,048.36 $916,519.75
Revenue Less Expenditures $190,106.09 $536,443.62 $264,341.69  

Transfers Out
City Administration

Transfer Expense
9100     Transfers Out                 191,668.80 191,668.80  (191,668.80) 0.00%

Total Transfer Expense $191,668.80 $191,668.80  ($191,668.80)
City Administration Totals $191,668.80 $191,668.80  ($191,668.80)

3/27/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 8 of 9
2:54 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Current Period
Feb 2023
Feb 2023

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Feb 2023

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

Parks & Recreation
Transfer Expense

9100     Transfers Out                 0.00  142,973.00 142,973.00 0.00%
Total Transfer Expense $0.00  $142,973.00 $142,973.00

Parks & Recreation Totals $0.00  $142,973.00 $142,973.00
Public Works

Transfer Expense
9100     Transfers Out                 0.00  85,000.00 85,000.00 0.00%

Total Transfer Expense $0.00  $85,000.00 $85,000.00
Public Works Totals $0.00  $85,000.00 $85,000.00

Transfers Out $191,668.80 $191,668.80 $227,973.00 $36,304.20
Net Change in Fund Balance ($1,562.71) $344,774.82 $36,368.69  

Fund Balances
Beginning Fund Balance 2,026,147.80 1,679,810.27   0.00%
Net Change in Fund Balance (1,562.71) 344,774.82 36,368.69  0.00%
Ending Fund Balance 2,024,585.09 2,024,585.09   0.00%

3/27/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 9 of 9
2:54 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Current Period
Feb 2023
Feb 2023

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Feb 2023

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

Revenue & Expenditures
Expenses

Court Building Security
Supplies

5202     Equipment                     0.00 2,114.91  (2,114.91) 0.00%
Total Supplies $0.00 $2,114.91  ($2,114.91)

Court Building Security Totals $0.00 $2,114.91  ($2,114.91)
Court Technology Fund

Services
5310     Software                      0.00 4,647.00  (4,647.00) 0.00%

Total Services $0.00 $4,647.00  ($4,647.00)
Court Technology Fund Totals $0.00 $4,647.00  ($4,647.00)

Parks & Recreation
Contract Labor

5109     City Engineer                 0.00 6,001.00  (6,001.00) 0.00%
Total Contract Labor $0.00 $6,001.00  ($6,001.00)

Parks & Recreation Totals $0.00 $6,001.00  ($6,001.00)
Public Works

Capital Outlay
6040     Street - Capital              0.00 143,370.77  (143,370.77) 0.00%

Total Capital Outlay $0.00 $143,370.77  ($143,370.77)
Debt Service Expense

7020     2021 CO Bond Interest         0.00 28,712.50  (28,712.50) 0.00%
Total Debt Service Expense $0.00 $28,712.50  ($28,712.50)

Public Works Totals $0.00 $172,083.27  ($172,083.27)
Revenues

Other Expense
7185     Transfer Out - Special Rev    (143,370.77) (143,370.77)  143,370.77 0.00%

Total Other Expense ($143,370.77) ($143,370.77)  $143,370.77
Revenues Totals ($143,370.77) ($143,370.77)  $143,370.77

3/27/2023 Building Security Fund, Capital Improvement Projects Fund, Coronoavirus Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Court Page 1 of 3
2:55 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Current Period
Feb 2023
Feb 2023

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Feb 2023

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

Transporation Impact Fee
Other Expense

7185     Transfer Out - Special Rev    0.00 16,972.74  (16,972.74) 0.00%
Total Other Expense $0.00 $16,972.74  ($16,972.74)

Transporation Impact Fee Totals $0.00 $16,972.74  ($16,972.74)
Expenses ($143,370.77) $58,448.15  ($58,448.15)

Revenue Less Expenditures $143,370.77 ($58,448.15)   

Transfers In
Revenues

Transfer Revenue
8100     Transfers In                  6,814.91 6,814.91  6,814.91 0.00%

Total Transfer Revenue $6,814.91 $6,814.91  $6,814.91
Revenues Totals $6,814.91 $6,814.91  $6,814.91

Transfers In $6,814.91 $6,814.91  $6,814.91

Transfers Out
Court Building Security

Transfer Expense
9100     Transfers Out                 39.33 99.41  (99.41) 0.00%

Total Transfer Expense $39.33 $99.41  ($99.41)
Court Building Security Totals $39.33 $99.41  ($99.41)

Court Technology Fund
Transfer Expense

9100     Transfers Out                 32.11 81.15  (81.15) 0.00%
Total Transfer Expense $32.11 $81.15  ($81.15)

Court Technology Fund Totals $32.11 $81.15  ($81.15)
Jury Fund

Transfer Expense
9100     Transfers Out                 0.81 2.04  (2.04) 0.00%

Total Transfer Expense $0.81 $2.04  ($2.04)
Jury Fund Totals $0.81 $2.04  ($2.04)

Juvenile Case Fund
Transfer Expense

9100     Transfers Out                 40.14 101.45  (101.45) 0.00%
Total Transfer Expense $40.14 $101.45  ($101.45)

Juvenile Case Fund Totals $40.14 $101.45  ($101.45)
Transfers Out $112.39 $284.05  ($284.05)

3/27/2023 Building Security Fund, Capital Improvement Projects Fund, Coronoavirus Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Court Page 2 of 3
2:55 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Current Period
Feb 2023
Feb 2023

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Feb 2023

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

Net Change in Fund Balance $150,073.29 ($51,917.29)   

Fund Balances
Beginning Fund Balance (543,683.34) (341,692.76)   0.00%
Net Change in Fund Balance 150,073.29 (51,917.29)   0.00%
Ending Fund Balance (393,610.05) (393,610.05)   0.00%

3/27/2023 Building Security Fund, Capital Improvement Projects Fund, Coronoavirus Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Court Page 3 of 3
2:55 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



 
                                                                                                                         AGENDA ITEM: 7A 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA MEMO 

Prepared By: John Cabrales Jr, City Administrator                                                                 March 20, 
2023 

ATLAS Municipal Services, LLC Professional Services Agreement 
 
DESCRIPTION: 
 
Receive, consider, and act on a Resolution authorizing the City Administrator to enter into an 
agreement with ATLAS Municipal Services, LLC for the City’s plan review and building inspection 
services. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
At the May 4, 2020, meeting, the City Council approved an agreement with SAFEbuilt, LLC (attached) for 
plan review and building inspection services. However, for whatever reason, SAFEbuilt was never 
contacted to implement these services. Instead, the City entered into an Agreement with EMI Services, 
LLC for plan review and building inspection services. Nonetheless, the City has been using EMI for these 
services. EMI Services recently contacted the City and informed us that they will not be able to provide 
these services past March 2023, because the Inspector is retiring. 
 
At the January 16, 2023, City Council meeting, staff shared the existing agreement with SAFEbuilt, and 
proposals from Bureau Veritas, Metrocode. Representatives from each of these companies made a brief 
presentation. Staff was directed to share the references from each of the companies with the Council 
and to make a recommendation on which one the City should use for plan review and building inspection 
services. As previously stated, either company can provide the City with these services and can do a good 
job. On February 6, 2023, the City Council had a discussion, and the consensus of the Council was for the 
City Administrator to work with the City Attorney to enter into a new agreement with SAFEbuilt for the 
plan review and building inspection services. It was determined by the City Attorney that the existing 
agreement with SAFEbuilt was void since it was never executed.  
 
After that meeting, staff began working with the SAFEbuilt representative, Lee Swain, on the transition 
of these services from  EMI Services. However, staff was informed by Mr. Swain that he was leaving 
SAFEbuilt and forming his own plan review and building inspection services company, ATLAS Municipal 
Service LLC. He apparently has four former SAFEbuilt inspectors that are part of his company, but Mr. 
Swain has committed that he would personally be the inspector for the City of New Fairview. He is also 
proposing to charge a fifty percent (50%) of the municipal permit fee for residential inspections, 



compared to fifty-five (55%) in the SAFEbuilt Agreement. Staff has had a positive working experience 
with Mr. Swain, he is responsive to questions and has made every scheduled meeting without fail. 
 
 
 
Staff had a discussion with the City Council at the February 20, 2023, meeting on this change and possible 
opportunity of contracting with ATLAS Municipal Services for plan review and building inspection 
services. A concern was raised and discussed regarding Section 22 "Consultation Hiring of Consultant's 
Employees", of the SAFEbuilt Agreement. First, this Agreement with the SAFEbuilt had been opined to 
be voided. Second, Section 22 does not apply in this case because the City of New Fairview is not hiring 
Mr. Swain, or any other former SAFEbuilt employee. What is being considered is a standard Professional 
Service Agreement with a company, ATLAS Municipal Services, that happens to consist of former 
SAFEbuilt employees. The issue of a Noncompete Agreement was also discussed. A Noncompete 
Agreement between SAFEbuilt and their employees does not involve the City. Mr. Swain has stated he 
did not sign a Noncompete Agreement, and my understanding is the legal enforcement of these types 
of agreements are difficult at best. 
 
I have personally worked with Mr. Swain as the Building Official/Inspector at another City and he 
provided us with good customer service and worked well with the staff. The New Fairview staff have also 
had a positive working experience with Mr. Swain in the short time that he has been interacting with us, 
and he is responsive to questions and has made every scheduled meeting without fail. I think we will get 
good reliable service from ATLAS, and we will see some savings for each permit, compared to going with 
SAFEbuilt. Based on the consensus of the City Council at the Feb. 20 meeting discussion, staff worked 
with the City Attorney in drafting a Professional Services Agreement ATLAS Municipal Services, LLC. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Resolution. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 
 
None; the costs are passed through to the applicant. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTIONS: 
 
I move to Approve/Deny a Resolution authorizing the City Administrator to enter into an agreement 
with ATLAS Municipal Services, LLC for the City’s plan review and building inspection services. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

1. Resolution 202303-01-120 
2. Professional Services Agreement with Addendum A 



 
City of New Fairview, Texas 

RESOLUTION NO. 202303-01-120 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS TO APPROVE A 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH ATLAS MUNICIPAL SERVICES, LLC FOR THIRD- 
PARTY BUILDING REVIEW AND INSPECTION SERVICES; AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS, PROVIDING FOR A REPEALING 
CLAUSE; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of New Fairview, Texas has appointed the City Administrator 
as the Chief Administrative Officer of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, The City Administrator is responsible for the proper administration of all affairs of the City; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, The City Council is committed to standards necessary to facilitate proper inspection 
activities by the City relating to building standards within the corporate city limits of the City of New Fairview, 
Texas, and for residential and commercial buildings served by City utilities, relating to public safety, health, and 
general welfare; and 
 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of New Fairview, Texas had previously contracted with EMI 
Services, which has advised the City that they will no longer be providing such services after March 30, 2023; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, and the City recognizes that the volume of permits and inspections fluctuate over time, are 
anticipated to have increased in volume; and third-party building review and inspections is needed to allow the 
City to provide timely customer service for review and inspections of building activities. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW, 
TEXAS: 
 

Section 1:  That the City Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a Professional Services 
Agreement with ATLAS Municipal Service, LLC. 
 

Section 2:  All orders, ordinances, and resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent 
with any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions of 
this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 

Section 3:  That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage, and it is so resolved. 
 

PRESENTED AND PASSED on this 20th day of March 2023, at a Regular meeting of the New Fairview 
City Council. 
 
        ___________________ 

JOHN TAYLOR, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
BROOKE BOLLER, City Secretary 



























Miscellanous Inspection Fees $60.00 per address / Trip





















Addendum “A” 
Statutorily Required Provisions 

 
1. Verification Regarding Energy Company Boycotts. To the extent this Agreement 
constitutes a contract for goods or services for which a written verification is required under 
§ 2274.002, TEX. GOV’T. CODE, (as added by Senate Bill 13, 87th Texas Legislature, Regular 
Session) as amended, Consultant hereby verifies that it and its parent company, wholly- or 
majority- owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, do not boycott energy companies 
and, will not boycott energy companies during the term of this Agreement. The foregoing 
verification is made solely to comply with § 2274.002, TEX. GOV’T. CODE, as amended, to the 
extent § 2274.002, TEX. GOV’T. CODE does not contravene applicable Texas or federal law. 
As used in the foregoing verification, “boycott energy companies” shall have the meaning 
assigned to the term “boycott energy company” in § 809.001, TEX.GOV’T.CODE. Consultant 
understands “affiliate” to mean an entity that controls, is controlled by, or is under common 
control with the Underwriter and exists to make a profit. 

2. Certifications Regarding Terrorist Organizations and Boycott of Israel. To the extent this 
Agreement constitutes a contract for goods or services for which a written verification is 
required under §§ 2252.151-.154 TEX. GOV’T. CODE, Consultant hereby certifies that it and 
its parent company, wholly or majority- owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, is not 
a company identified on the Texas Comptroller’s list of companies known to have contracts 
with, or provide supplies or services to, a foreign organization designated as a Foreign 
Terrorist Organization by the U.S. Secretary of State under federal law.  

3. To the extent this Agreement constitutes a contract for goods or services for which a 
written verification is required under Sections 2271.001-002 TEX. GOV’T. CODE, Consultant 
and its parent company, wholly or majority- owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, 
further certifies and verifies that it does not boycott Israel and agrees that it will not boycott 
Israel during the term of this Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “boycott” 
shall mean and include terminating business activities or otherwise taking any action that is 
intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial relations with Israel, or 
with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an Israeli-controlled territory. (TEX. 
GOV’T. CODE §§ 2270.001-.002, 808.001-.006, .051-.057, .101-.102) The foregoing 
verification is made solely to comply with Chapter 2271, TEX. GOV’T. CODE, to the extent the 
appliable provision in Chapter 2271.001, TEX. GOV’T. CODE does not contravene applicable 
Texas or federal law. As used in the foregoing verification, “boycott Israel” shall have the 
meaning assigned to such term in § 808.001(1), TEX. GOV’T. CODE. Consultant understands 
“affiliate” to mean an entity that controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with 
the Underwriter and exists to make a profit. 



 
AGENDA ITEM: 7B 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA MEMO 

Prepared By: John Cabrales Jr, City Administrator                                                                           March 20, 2023 

Public Improvements to Wilson Court, Creasser Lane, Stewart Street and the 
parking lot of the city park 

 
DESCRIPTION: 
 
Receive, consider, and act on a Resolution authorizing a Not-to-Exceed amount for improvements to 
Wilson Court, Creasser Lane, Stewart Street and the parking lot of the City Park. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
On January 16, 2023, the City Council approved a Project Agreement with Wise County that included 
the grinding of the old asphalt, applying base material, and laying asphalt to Wilson Court, Creasser 
Lane, a portion of Stewart Street, and the parking lot of the new park. Some of these improvements 
in the Chisholm Hills subdivision are part of a Texas Department of Agriculture (TDA), 2021-22 Texas 
Community Development Block Grant (TxCDBG) project in the amount of $350,000, with a local 
match of $83,784, for the reconstruction of Wilson Court and Creasser Lane. On September 6, 2022, 
the City Council awarded a contract to JR West Texas Construction in the amount of $426,991.50, for 
drainage improvements to Wilson Court and Creasser Lane as part of the TxCDBG. That drainage 
improvement project began on January 30, 2023, and will be done before the 120 days allotted in the 
agreement. 
 
On March 6, 2022, the City Council awarded a drainage improvement project for Stewart Street, and 
the City Park located at 150 Stewart Street, to 3H Concrete Inc. for a total of $23,690. This project is 
anticipated to be completed around the same time that JR West Texas Construction is completing 
their drainage improvement project.  
 
The City has been in communication with Wise County Commissioner Precinct 1, Biff Hayes, on the 
reconstruction of these roads and the parking lot at the City Park. Commissioner Hayes is supportive 
of the City’s request and has stated he will be ready to begin the road reconstruction as soon as the 
drainage improvement work is completed. Per the Project Agreement, the City is responsible for all 
material costs, including the cost for the rental of any equipment needed for the project. The County 
is responsible for their personnel and equipment costs for this project. 
 
Staff worked with the County on determining the amount of road materials needed and associated 
costs. Staff also prepared estimated costs for the guardrails and street signs that will be needed for 



this project, but that will not be done by Wise County. Those costs can be found in the Financial 
Consideration Section below.  
 
Staff recommends approval of the resolution. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 
 
The City will be responsible for all material costs for this project. The table with breakdown of the 
costs for this project is attached, but below is the cost for the individual components for a total 
estimated amount of $200,521.13. Staff is also requesting a project contingency in the amount of 
$10,000. 
 

Road Materials (road base, asphalt, tack, etc.) $140,696.13 
Delivery fee for oil     $     3,000.00 
Guard Rail materials and installation   $   54,250.00 
Signs       $     2,575.00 
TOTAL       $ 200,521.13 

 
The TxCDBG project has $433,784 obligated that includes the grant and local matching funds. The 
Council awarded a contract to JR West Texas Construction for drainage improvements to Wilson 
Court and Creasser Lane for $426,991.50. This contract has been amended to remove unneeded 
driveway culvert work, resulting in a surplus of $23,750, thus the final costs for the drainage 
improvement is estimated at $403,241.50. This will leave a balance of $30,542.50 of unobligated 
TxCDBG project funds that will go towards the cost of materials for Wilson Court and/or Creasser 
Lane. 
 
On September 26, 2022, the City received $191,668.80 from the Texas Division of Emergency 
Management. This was the second and final allocation of the City’s Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal 
Recovery Funds (SLFRF) from the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) that was signed into law in March 
2021. The City did receive its first payment in late 2021 for approximately the same amount. These 
funds are intended to provide support to State, territorial, local, and Tribal governments in 
responding to the economic and public health impacts of COVID-19 and in their efforts to contain 
impacts on their communities, residents, and businesses. The ARPA-SLFRF funds received in 2021 
were used for street reconstruction projects in Chisholm Hills.  
 
Staff recommends the placement of the $191,668.80 SLFRF funds into the Capital Improvements 
Project Special Revenue Fund and use them to pay for this road reconstruction project. Below are the 
estimated revenues, expenditures, and balances of the Capital Improvements Project Special 
Revenue Fund. You will note that this Fund is estimated to have a negative balance at the end of the 
current fiscal year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
FY 2022-23 Capital Improvements Project Fund 

Fund-11 
 

 

  FY 2020-21 
Actual 

FY 2021-22 
Adopted 

FY 2022-23 
Proposed 

REVENUES       
2021 CO Bond $3,005,794.15 $0.00 $0.00 
Transfer from Gen Fund $21,584.75 $120,000.00 $85,000.00 
CDBG Grant $0.00 $0.00  $350,000.00 
Interest Income $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 
TOTAL REVENUES $3,027,378.90 $120,000.00 $435,500.00 
        
EXPENDITURES       
Chisholm Hills Road Project $507,834.63 $2,506,240.69 $142,848.35 
CDBG Road Project $0.00 $0.00 $527,000.00 
S County Line Road Bridge $21,584.75 $0.00 $0.00 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $529,419.38 $2,506,240.69 $669,848.35 
        
FUND BALANCE       
        
Net Change in Fund Balance $2,497,959.52 -$2,386,240.69 -$234,348.35 
        
Fund Balance, Beginning 0 $2,497,959.52 $111,718.83 
        
Fund Balance, Ending $2,497,959.52 $111,718.83 -$122,629.52 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTIONS: 
 
I move to Approve/Deny on a Resolution authorizing a Not-to-Exceed amount of $200,521.13, with a 
$10,000 contingency amount, for improvements to Wilson Court, Creasser Lane, Stewart Street, and 
the parking lot of the city park. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

1. Wilson, Creasser, Stewart, and City Park Parking Lot Reconstruction Cost 
2. Resolution 202303-03-122 



Material Type Tons/Gallons Cubic Yards Thickness Street(s) Price per ton/gallon Total Length Width SQFT
Road Base 1124 tons 8 Inches Creaser Ln $9 per ton $10,116 1089ft 22ft
Road Base 2357.3 tons 8 Inches Wilson Ct $9 per ton $21,213 2284ft 22ft
Road Base 593.70 tons 8 Inches Stewart St / Parking lot $9 per ton $5,343.30 12,600
Asphalt 361.87 tons 184.861 2.5 Inches Creaser Ln $73 per ton $26,416.19 1089ft 22ft
Asphalt 758.95 tons 387.716 2.5 Inches Wilson Ct $73 per ton $55,403.65 2284ft 22ft
Asphalt 191.16 tons 97.654 2.5 Inches Stewart St / Parking lot $73 per ton $13,954.68 12,600
Tack (Prime Oil) 505 gal .19 Application Rate Creaser Ln $4.50 per gallon $2,272.50 1089ft 22ft
Tack (Prime Oil) 1061.00 gal .19 Application Rate Wilson Ct $4.50 per gallon $4,774.50 2284ft 22ft
Tack (Prime Oil) 267.18 gal .19 Application Rate Stewart St / Parking lot $4.50 per gallon $1,202.31 12,600

Total For Materials $140,696.13

Delivery Fee For Oil $3,000.00

Material Cost Per Foot Lnft of Material Total
Guard Rail $70 775 $54,250.00

Street(S) Pole Quantity/Cost Stop Sign Regulatory Sign Park Sign Street Sign Total
Creaser Ln 4 x 100 = 400 2 x 65 = 130 2 x 45 = 90 2 x 90 = 180 $800.00
Wilson Ct 7 x 100 = 700 7 x 45 = 315 $1,015.00
Stewart St/ Parking Lot 5 x 100 = 500 4 x 65 = 260 $760.00

Total For Above $2,575.00

Project Grand Total $200,521.13

Wilson, Creasser, Stewart and City Park Parking Lot Reconstruction Cost



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION  
202303-03-122 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS AUTHORIZING A NOT TO 
EXCEED AMOUNT FOR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS TO WILSON COURT, CREASSER 
LANE, STEWART STREET, AND THE PARKING LOT OF THE CITY PARK AND A BUDGET 
TRANSFER. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of New Fairview is a Type A General Law incorporated city, in the State of 
Texas; and 

 
WHEREAS, on January 16, 2023, the City Council approved a Project Agreement with Wise 

County that included grinding of the old asphalt, applying base material, and laying new asphalt to Wilson 
Court, Creasser Lane, as well as a portion of Stewart Street, and to the parking lot of the new park (Project); 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Project Agreement provides that the County will furnish the labor and equipment 

to perform the Project, and the City will pay for all the materials directly to the vendors; and 
 

WHEREAS, some of these improvements in the Chisholm Hills subdivision are part of a Texas 
Department of Agriculture, 2021-22 Texas Community Development Block Grant (TxCDBG) project in 
the amount of $350,000, with a local match of $83,784, for the reconstruction of Wilson Court and 
Creasser Lane; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 6, 2022, the City Council awarded a contract to JR West Texas 

Construction in the amount of $426,991.50, for drainage improvements to Wilson Court and Creasser 
Lane as part of the TxCDBG; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 6, 2022, the City Council awarded a drainage improvement project for 

Stewart Street, and the City Park located at 150 Stewart Street, to 3H Concrete Inc. for a total of $23,690; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, City staff worked with the County in determining the amount of road materials 

needed and the associated costs. Staff have also prepared estimated costs for the guardrails and street signs 
that will also be needed for this project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds it is in the public interest to complete the Project within the 

City.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
Section 1. That all matters stated in the recitals herein above are found to be true and correct and are 
incorporated herein by reference as if copied in their entirety. 

 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Section 2. That the City Council approves a not-to-exceed Project amount of $200,521.13, and a Project 
contingency amount of $10,000. 

 
Section 3. That the City Council approves the budget transfer of $191,668.80 in the City’s Coronavirus 
State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (SLFRF) from the General Fund Balance to the Capital 
Improvements Project Special Revenue Fund for this Project. 

 
Section 4. That if any portion of this resolution shall, for any reason, be declared invalid by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect the remaining provisions hereof and the City Council 
hereby determined that it would have adopted this Resolution without the invalid provision. 

 
Section 5. That this Resolution shall become effective from and after its date of passage. 

 
 
PRESENTED AND PASSED on the 20th day of March, 2023, at a Regular Meeting of the New Fairview 
City Council.  
 
 
APPROVED:             ATTESTED: 
 
 
_________________________________        __________________________________ 
 John Taylor, Mayor            Brooke Boller, City Secretary   
           
 



 
                                                                                                                         AGENDA ITEM: 7C 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA MEMO 

Prepared By: John Cabrales Jr, City Administrator                                                               March 20, 2023 

Strategic Plan 
 
DESCRIPTION: 
 
Receive, consider, and act on a Resolution adopting a Strategic Plan for the City, including a Vision 
Statement, Mission Statement, Core Values, and Strategic Goals and Objectives.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
Strategic Planning is a process in which an organization's leaders define their vision for the future and 
identify their organization's goals and objectives. The process includes establishing the sequence in 
which those goals should be realized so that the organization can reach its stated vision. It involves 
developing a Vision and Mission Statement, Core Values, and goals, priorities, and action steps needed.  
 
A Vision Statement is an organization's declaration of what it desires to achieve and become in the 
future. Vision Statements act as a goal for an organization to strive toward and must align with its 
Mission, Strategic Plan, its culture, and its Core Values. 
 
A Mission Statement is a concise explanation of the organization's reason for existence. It describes the 
organization's purpose and its overall intention. The Mission Statement supports the vision and serves 
to communicate purpose and direction to employees, customers, and other stakeholders. This is a 
main building block to the formulation of the Strategic Plan. 
 
Core Values lists the principles that guide and direct the organization and its culture. In a values-led 
organization, the values create a moral compass for the organization and its employees. It guides 
decision-making and establishes a standard against which actions can be assessed. These Core Values 
are an internalized framework that is shared and acted on by leadership. 
 
A Strategic Plan should focus on a handful of goals; maybe five or six priorities for an organization our 
size. These goals should be aligned with the Mission and Vision Statements and should contain 
Strategic Objectives. It should be actionable, measurable, and easy to understand so that it can be used 
in making operational decisions. A Strategic Plan serves as a roadmap that can be used to prioritize 
resources (including the budget), goals, and operational initiatives. 
 



In 2021, the City of New contracted with Texas A&M AgriLife Extension for the Texas Rural Leadership 
Program to conduct a Strategic Planning initiative with the Planning and Zoning Commission. The 
process resulted in the drafting of a draft Vision Statement, Mission Statement, Core Values, and 
strategic goals and objectives. However, this work was never shared with the City Council, so the City 
never adopted them.  
 
It is important to involve as many people as possible to get diverse input when engaging in the 
Strategic Planning process to better understand community priorities. On December 8, 2022, the City 
launched a New Fairview Citizen Survey that collected input from residents on various city related 
topics. The survey was concluded on January 16, 2023, with ninety respondents to the survey. On 
February 3, 2023, the City Council held a Strategic Planning retreat to review the results of the citizen 
survey. Staff also shared the results of the 2021 City Strategic Planning initiative, and gave sample 
Vision Statements, Mission Statements, Core Values, and strategic goals and objectives from other 
cities. Attached are the results of the Strategic Planning retreat, based on the consensus of the City 
Council. 
 
On February 20, 2023, staff had a work session discussion with the City Council on the City’s draft 
Vision Statement, Mission Statement, Core Values, and strategic goals and objectives based on the 
input from the Strategic Planning retreat. Staff was directed to prepare a resolution for the adoption of 
the City’s Vision Statement, Mission Statement, Core Values, and strategic goals and objectives.  
 
The City Strategic Plan adopted by the City Council resolution will be placed on the City’s website and 
will be used in the upcoming Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget discussions with Council. They City’s Strategic 
Plan, including its Vision Statement, Mission Statement,  Core Values and Strategic Goals and 
Objectives will also be used by staff in our daily operations. Staff will identify some key performance 
indicators for each strategic goal so that staff can come back to Council later to share any progress 
made. Additionally, as a reminder, Strategic Plans are not static documents; they change as new 
circumstances arise, both internally and externally. As such, staff will have a discussion with the City 
Council in the near future. 
 
Staff recommends the approval of the Resolution. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 
 
None 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTIONS: 
 
I move to Approve/Deny a Resolution adopting a Strategic Plan for the City, including a Vision 
Statement, Mission Statement, Core Values, and Strategic Goals and Objectives. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

1. Strategic Plan 
2. Resolution 202303-04-123 



 



City of New Fairview Strategic Plan  Page 1 of 9 
 

 



City of New Fairview Strategic Plan  Page 2 of 9 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

Message from the Mayor ..................................................................................................... 3 

Welcome to New Fairview ................................................................................................... 4 

Strategic Planning Process Overview ................................................................................... 5 

Vision, Mission and Core Values ..........................................................................................
 6 

Strategic Goals and Objectives ............................................................................................ 8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



City of New Fairview Strategic Plan  Page 3 of 9 
 

Message from the Mayor 
 

It is my pleasure to present to you our City’s Strategic Plan based on input from the community, 

City Council and staff. This plan signals to all that New Fairview is preserving our rural heritage, 

seeking opportunities to partner with others, protect our residents, improve our public 

infrastructure and manage the growth is upon us. The Strategic Plan includes the City’s first ever 

Vision and Mission Statements, Core Values and Strategic Goals and Objectives.   

 

I expect this Plan to serve as a guide and provide the City Council, staff and the citizens of New 

Fairview with an in-depth list of things that we need to attend to. This Strategic Plan is an all-

encompassing systematic approach that permits the current and future City Councils that ability to 

best allocate the resources entrusted to us by our citizens. It will give us the ability to prioritize the 

actions that have to be taken in order to meet the overall goals that we need to fulfill in order to 

generate the results that the citizens expect and deserve. 

 

Many hours have been invested in the creation of this Strategic Plan, including the creation, 

implementation and results tabulation of the New Fairview Citizen Survey. I would like to 

personally thank the ninety (90) respondents to the survey because your input was valuable in 

helping the City Council identify and prioritize strategic objectives and goals.  

 

This Strategic Plan has been placed on the City website and will be used in the upcoming Fiscal 

Year 2023-24 Budget discussions. The plan will also be used by staff in our daily operations and 

they will identify some key performance indicators for each strategic goal and report the progress 

made. The City Council will then review these progress reports and have discussions with staff. 

Strategic plans are not static documents, they change as new circumstances arise, both internally 

and externally. As such, the City Council will review the plan at least once a year to determine if 

any changes are needed, and to ensure that we are addressing priorities identified by the 

community. 

 

  



City of New Fairview Strategic Plan  Page 4 of 9 
 

Welcome to New Fairview 
 

Located just 15 minutes north of the Alliance Corridor, amongst rolling hills and open plains, the 

City of New Fairview residents enjoy all the benefits of living in a semi-rural atmosphere, with 

the amenities of a short 30-minute drive to downtown Fort Worth. The Dallas-Fort Worth 

Metroplex is one of the fastest-growing areas in the state, consisting of 12 counties, more than 200 

cities, and over 8 million people. The combination of an ideal location, strong Texas economy, 

and staggering population growth has resulted in New Fairview seeing a 31.2% growth rate from 

2021 to 2022 for an estimated population of 2,060. This made New Fairview one of the top ten 

(10) fastest growing cities by percent in the North Central Texas Council of Governments region. 

 

By area, New Fairview is the largest city in Wise County, consisting of approximately 16 square 

miles, bounded by State Highway 287 to the west, the Wise and Denton County line to the east, 

and State Highway 114 approximately four miles to the south. New Fairview was originally settled 

by immigrants from the Illinois Valley, who creatively named the area, the “Illinois settlement”. 

The settlement's name was later changed to Fairview, due to the scenic vistas of the rolling hills 

and the surrounding prairies, only to be changed once again, in 1999, to New Fairview, when the 

city alderman discovered they were sharing their name with 14 other cities in Texas. The many 

large tracts of land remaining in the city have predominantly been held by families for generations, 

who have a strong ranching and dairy farm history, as well as having over 400 active Barnett Shale 

gas wells. 

 

The City of New Fairview is served by the Northwest and Decatur ISD, which is a primary driver 

of the new housing development being seen between State Highway 287 and I-35. 

 

 

 

 

 



City of New Fairview Strategic Plan  Page 5 of 9 
 

Strategic Planning Process Overview 
 

Strategic planning is a process in which an organization's leaders define their vision for the future 

and identify their organization's goals and objectives. The process includes establishing the 

sequence in which those goals should be realized so that the organization can reach its stated 

vision. It is important to involve as many people as possible to get diverse input when engaging in 

the strategic planning process to better understand community priorities. On December 8, 2022, 

the City launched a New Fairview Citizen Survey that collected input from residents on various 

city related topics. The survey was concluded on January 16, 2023, with ninety respondents to the 

survey. 

 

On February 3, 2023, the City Council held a strategic planning retreat to review the results of the 

citizen survey. The Council reviewed the results of the 2021 City strategic planning initiative, and 

sample vision statements, mission statements, core values, and strategic goals and objectives from 

other cities. The strategic planning retreat focused primarily on what the City of New Fairview 

needs to do to realize its vision for the community's future and accomplish the mission of the 

organization. The strategic planning process was more policy-oriented and less about how to carry 

out the day-to-day operations and delivery of public services. 

 

On February 20, 2023, staff had a work session discussion with the City Council on the draft vision 

statement, mission statement, core values, and strategic goals and objectives based on the input 

from the strategic planning retreat. Staff was directed to prepare a resolution for the adoption of a 

vision statement, mission statement, core values, and strategic goals and objectives. On March 20, 

2023, the City Council passed Resolution (222303-04-123) adopting the Strategic Plan for the 

City, including a Vision Statement, Mission Statement, Core Values, and Strategic Goals and 

Objectives. 

 

 

 

  



City of New Fairview Strategic Plan  Page 6 of 9 
 

Vision, Mission, and Core Values 
 

An organization's Vision is aspirational in nature. It defines what the organization wants to be or 

to achieve. It is an idealized description of the desired future state of the community. Vision 

statements act as a goal for an organization to strive toward and must align with its mission, 

strategic planning, culture, and core values. Below is the City Council’s shared vision for New 

Fairview's future. 

 

NEW FAIRVIEW VISION 

New Fairview is a thriving rural community determined to balance old 
and new while strategically managing growth and sustainability for the 
next generation. 

 

Whereas the Vision Statement describes the idealized future state of the community, a Mission 

Statement describes the organization's purpose. It defines the "business" of the organization and 

its relationship with its customers. The Mission Statement supports the vision and serves to 

communicate purpose and direction to employees, customers, and other stakeholders. This is a 

main building block to the formulation of the strategic plan. Below is the City Council’s shared 

mission for the organization. 

 

NEW FAIRVIEW MISSION 

New Fairview is committed to governing with integrity and fiscal 
responsibility to ensure the overall quality of life for our citizens by 
providing excellence in public safety, economic growth, public 
infrastructure, and community services. 

 

Core Values are the fundamental principles that guide how members of the organization conduct 

themselves while carrying out the mission in pursuit of the vision. Together, the values provide an 

ethical framework for decision-making and action. In a values-led organization, the values create 



City of New Fairview Strategic Plan  Page 7 of 9 
 

a moral compass for the organization and its employees. It guides decision-making and establishes 

a standard against which actions can be assessed. These core values are an internalized framework 

that is shared and acted on by leadership. Below are the City Council’s shared Core Values for the 

organization. 

 

NEW FAIRVIEW CORE VALUES 

Integrity 

Service 

Trust 

Transparency 

Respectful 

Accountable 

Family Friendly 

Fiscally Responsible 

Preservation of our Natural Beauty 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



City of New Fairview Strategic Plan  Page 8 of 9 
 

Strategic Goals and Objectives 
 

A Strategic Plan should focus on a handful of Strategic Goals for an organization. These Strategic 

Goals should be aligned with the mission and vision statements and should each contain Strategic 

Objectives. The Strategic Objectives should be actionable, measurable, and easy to understand so 

that they can be used in making operational decisions. The Strategic Plan serves as a roadmap that 

can be used to prioritize resources, including the budget, goals, and operational initiatives. 

 

A set of Strategic Objectives were identified and discussed using the ideas generated by the City 

Council, and based on the Citizen Satisfaction Survey, in a brainstorming activity during the 

strategic planning retreat. The objectives were then ranked by the City Council, without staff 

participation. The objectives receiving three or more votes were then grouped into strategic goals, 

for a total of six (6) Strategic Goals. Below are the City Council’s shared Strategic Goals and 

Objectives for the organization. 

 

GOAL 1 – Protect the Public 

OBJECTIVE 1.1 – Improve Animal Control Services. 

OBJECTIVE 1.2 – Improve Code Enforcement. 

OBJECTIVE 1.3 – Grow Public Safety Services. 

 

GOAL 2 – Invest in Infrastructure 

OBJECTIVE 2.1 – Better Roads and Drainage. 

OBJECTIVE 2.2 – Convert Multi-Purpose Building to public safety use only. 

OBJECTIVE 2.3 – Build a Public Works Building. 

 

GOAL 3 – Manage or Growth 

OBJECTIVE 3.1 – Respect for our rural heritage. 

OBJECTIVE 3.2 – Keep existing new residential minimum to one (1) acre lots. 

OBJECTIVE 3.3 – Update the Zoning Map. 

 



City of New Fairview Strategic Plan  Page 9 of 9 
 

GOAL 4 – Exercise Fiscal Responsibility 

OBJECTIVE 4.1 – Sustain a low Property Tax Rate. 

OBJECTIVE 4.2 – Seek grant opportunities. 

OBJECTIVE 4.3 – Seek interlocal opportunities. 

 

GOAL 5 – Parks & Beautification 

OBJECTIVE 5.1 – Develop and enhance Community Events. 

OBJECTIVE 5.2 – Enhance the beautification of the community. 

 

GOAL 6 – Advance our Interests 

OBJECTIVE 6.1 – Improve Communication. 

OBJECTIVE 6.2 – Protect Extraterritorial Jurisdiction. 

OBJECTIVE 6.3 – Develop and Economic Development Plan. 

 

 

 

 

 



 
City of New Fairview, Texas 

RESOLUTION NO. 202303-04-123 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS TO 
ADOPT A NEW STRATEGIC PLAN, INCLUDING A VISION STATEMENT, MISSION 
STATEMENT, CORE VALUES, AND STRATEGIC GOALS AND OBJECTIVES, PROVIDING 
FOR A REPEALING CLAUSE; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council and staff have conducted strategic planning work 
sessions, as well as the City conducting a New Fairview Citizen Survey that collected input from 
residents on various city related topics; and 
 

WHEREAS, on February 3, 2023, the City Council held a strategic planning retreat to 
review the results of the citizen survey, and discuss a vision statement, mission statement, core 
values, and strategic goals and objectives; and 
 

WHEREAS, on February 20, 2023, staff had a work session discussion with the City 
Council to complete a review of strategic plan issues as shown in the attached City of 
New Fairview Strategic Plan documents on the draft vision statement, mission statement, 
core values, and strategic goals and objectives based on the input from the strategic planning 
retreat; and 
 

WHEREAS, strategic planning is a disciplined effort to produce fundamental decisions 
and actions that shape and guide what an organization is, what it does and why it performs the 
services and/or programs it does; and  

 
WHEREAS, there are numerous benefits to strategic planning, including: organizations’ 

ability to increase their effectiveness and efficiency, improve understanding through better 
learning, make better decisions, enhance organizational capabilities, improve communications 
and public relations as well as increase political support.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS: 
 

Section 1:  That the foregoing recitals are deemed true and material parts of this 
resolution and are fully incorporated herein by reference. 
 

Section 2:  The City Council hereby adopts a new City Strategic Plan, including a Vision 
Statement, Mission Statement, Core Values, and Strategic Goals and Objectives, which is 
attached hereto as Attachment A and incorporated fully herein for all purposes. 

 
Section 3:  The City Council hereby authorizes and directs the City Administrator to 

commence any steps necessary to implement, utilize, and promote the new City Strategic Plan. 
 
Section 4:  All orders, ordinances, and resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict 

or inconsistent with any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such 



 

conflict, and the provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters 
resolved herein. 
 

Section 5:  That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage, and it is 
so resolved. 
 

PRESENTED AND PASSED on this 20th day of March 2023, at a Regular meeting of 
the New Fairview City Council. 
 
        ___________________ 

JOHN TAYLOR, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
BROOKE BOLLER, City Secretary 



AGENDA ITEM: 7D 
  

 
 
 

                          CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA MEMO 

Prepared By: Susan Greenwood, Assistant City Secretary/Court Administrator            March 20, 2023 

Revised Master Fee Schedule 
 
DESCRIPTION: 
 
Receive, consider, and act on an Ordinance adopting a revised Master Schedule of Fees for the 
City of New Fairview. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
According to the City Code of Ordinances, Chapter 9 “PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT,” Article 5 
“Administration,” Section 38 “FEE SCHEDULE,” states: 
 

§ 38. Fee Schedule. The City Council shall establish a schedule of fees, charges 
and expenses and a collection procedure for the administration, review, and 
processing of applications regarding the issuance of building permits, certificates 
of occupancy, zoning change requests, plats, zoning board of adjustment appeals 
and other matters pertaining to this ordinance. The schedule of fees shall be 
posted in the office of the zoning administrative official, and may be altered or 
amended only by action of the City Council. Until all applicable fees, charges and 
expenses have been paid in full, no action shall be taken on any application or 
appeal. (Ordinance 2010-01-149 adopted 1/19/10) 

 
The Master Fee Schedule was established by ordinance 1999-015-0042, and amended by 
ordinances 2000-02-0062, 2000-10-0070, 2005-07-107 and 202210-01-100. 
 
The Master Fee Schedule should be reviewed by City Council periodically and any 
recommended changes should be discussed and updated as needed. The changes to the Master 
Fee Schedule should be based on an analysis of current charges as compared to cost recovery 
goals and/or comparison to surrounding entities.  In addition, fees should be reviewed to make 
sure they are still applicable and remove fees no longer needed and add any new fees. 
 
With the passage of a Solicitation Registration Ordinance, and the review of some building fees, 
staff recommends amending the Alterations, Repairs, Remodels, and Add-ons, Licenses, 



Registrations, and Trades, Health & Sanitary Inspection Fees, Other New Construction Fees, and 
Utility Related. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Ordinance. 
 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 
 
The fee amounts collected will be placed into the City’s General Fund and will be used to cover 
the costs of review, preparation and/or inspection for the various services provided. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTIONS: 
 
I move to Approve/Deny an Ordinance adopting a revised Master Schedule of Fees for the City 
of New Fairview. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

1. Ordinance 202303-02-108  



 

ORDINANCE NO. 202303-02-108 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS AMENDING THE 
MASTER FEE SCHEDULE ESTABLISHED BY ORDINANCE 1999-015-0042, 
AND FEE SCHEDULES ESTABLISHED BY ORDINANCES 2000-02-0062, 2000-
10-0070, 2005-07-107, AND 202210-01-100 AS AMENDED AND AS 
IMPLEMENTED AFTER NOVEMBER 4, 2019, BY ADOPTING AND 
AMENDING THE ALTERATIONS, REPAIRS, REMODELS, AND ADD-ONS, 
LICENSES, REGISTRATIONS, AND TRADES, HEALTH & SANITARY FEES, 
OTHER NEW CONSTRUCTION FEES, AND UTILITY RELATED; PROVIDING 
A CUMULATIVE REPEALING CLAUSE; PROVIDING SEVERABILITY; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Of New Fairview, Texas is a Type A General Law City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has heretofore adopted a Master Fee Schedule for City services and permit 

applications; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City had previously reviewed its previously adopted fees in the Fee Schedule and 
the associated costs to the City for providing those services, had determined that there was a need for 
amendments to the Fee Schedule to remove all consideration related to the value of the residential dwelling 
and the cost of construction or improving the residential dwelling in various fees already adopted, in 
accordance with Texas Local Government Code Section 214.907 and had effected such amendments AFTER 
November 4, 2019; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to ratify the amendments, by formally amending the Master Fee 

Schedule to amend the Alterations, Repairs, Remodels, and Add-ons, Licenses, Registrations, and Trades, 
Health & Sanitary Inspection Fees, and Utility Related; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds the amendments to the Master Fee Schedule proposed herein 
below in Exhibit “A” are reasonable and commensurate with the services provided, are not excessive, and 
should be adopted to further the public health, safety, and welfare. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

SECTION 1 
 That the Master Fee Schedule established pursuant to Ordinance 1999-015-0042, and Fee Schedules 
established by Ordinances 2000-02-0062, 2000-10-0070, 2005-07-107, and 202210-01-100 as amended 
and implemented after November 4, 2019, is hereby amended by amending the Alterations, Repairs, 
Remodels, and Add-ons, Licenses, Registrations, and Trades, Health & Sanitary Inspection Fees, Other 
New Construction Fees, and Utility Related. The new fees are set forth in the attached and incorporated 
Exhibit “A”, hereto. 
 

SECTION 2. 
 The City Secretary is hereby directed to revise the Master Fee Schedule in accordance with the 
above-referenced revisions and as provided in Exhibit “A”, a copy of which is attached to this Ordinance 
and incorporated for all purposes. A revised Master Fee Schedule shall be kept on file with the office of 
the City Secretary. 



 

 
 

SECTION 3. 
 

This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of ordinances and of the Code of Ordinances 
of the City of New Fairview, Texas, as amended, except where the provisions of this Ordinance are in 
direct conflict with the provisions of such ordinances and such Code, in which event the conflicting 
provisions of such ordinances and such Code are hereby repealed. 
 

SECTION 4. 
 

It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the phrases, clauses, sentences, 
paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance are severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or 
section of this Ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional by the valid judgment or decree of any court 
of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City 
Council without the incorporation in this Ordinance of any such unconstitutional phrase, clause, sentence, 
paragraph or section. 
 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and it is so ordained. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of New Fairview, Texas on this the 20th 
day of March, 2023. 

 
       ___________________________   
       John Taylor, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

_______________________________ 
Brooke Boller, City Secretary 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
Mater Fee Schedule 



CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW
MASTER FEE SCHEDULE

Types of Fees New Fee Changes
Use if Credit/Debit Card 3% of the Total Amount Due no change 

 Public Fax (Local)
$3.00 per page (send/receive) no change 

Insufficient Funds/Return Check Fee $30.00/check no change 

City Maps up to 11 x 17 
$5.00 no change 

Notary Signature (non-residents only) $3.00/document no change 
Large Base Map $100.00 no change 

Personnel Labor Cost $20.00/hour no change 
Copies (B & W) $0.10/page no change 
Copies (Color) $0.50/page no change 
Shipping Actual Cost no change  
Postage and Shipping Actual Cost no change  

Building Permit $700 + $0.50/sq. foot
no change 

Plan Review 50% of the New Construction Permit no change
Fire Code Review (If Applicable) $100 no change 

Building Permit Commercial Step Rate no change

Plan Review 65% of Building Permit
no change 

Fire Code Review (If Applicable) 20% of Building Permit no change 

Building Permit Commercial Step Rate no change

Plan Review 65% of Building Permit
no change 

Fire Code Review (If Applicable) 20% of Building Permit no change 

TOTAL VALUATION PERMIT FEE

New Multi-Family Residential

New Commercial

NEW COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS – STEP RATES

I.            ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

Open Records Request

II.               BUILDING & PERMITTING
New Construction

New Single Family Residential



$1.00 to $5,000.00 $110.00 No change
$5,001.00 to $10,000.00 $130.00 No change
$10,001.00 to $25,000.00 $130 for 1st $10,000; + $14 per each No change
$25,001.00 to $50,000.00 $303 for 1st $25,000; + $12.12 per each No change
$50,001.00 to $100,000.00 $421.25 for 1st $50,000; + $10.10 per No change
$100,001.00 to $500,000.00 $1,023.75 for 1st $100,000; + $5.60 per No change
$500,001.00 to $1,000,000.00 $3,263.75 for 1st $500,000; + $4.75 per No change

$5,638.75 for 1st $1,000,000; + $3.15 No change
per each additional $1,000.00 No change

Final Certificate of Occupancy (Not 
applicable to Manufactured Homes)

$100 Residential and Commercial 
no change 

Driveway with Curb Cut $100 Residential/$200 Commerical no change

Culvert Permit $100-Residential/$200 Commercial no change
Sign Permit Monument  $100.00 no change
Irrigation $100 Residential/$150 Commercial no change

Fence $80 Residential/$160 Commercial

no change

Accessory Building 

Air Contioned Space $.75 square foot, 
Non Air Conditioned Space  $.50 

square foor, Buildings not on slab $.23 
square foot

Changed based on 
square footage on 

the type of accessory 
building  - was a flat 
rate for all types of 
accessory buildings

New Construction Shell- Mixed Use 
Building

Commercial Step Rate no change
Shell Building Commercial Step Rate no change
Grading Permit $100 for Residential/ $300 for no change 

Re-Inspections after second red-tag $100 no change 

no change 

Re-Inspection Fees

Work Without Permit
Double the permit fee for anyone caught working without a permit.                      

Alterations, Repairs, Remodels, and Add-Ons

Residential

$1,000,001.00 and UP

Other New Construction Fees



Building Permit $600 + $1.00 Sq. Foot

no change

Building Permit Commercial Step Rate no change
Fire Code Review (if applicable) $80 no change
Final Certificate of Occupancy $100 no change

Finish Out Mixed Use- Residential $1.00 Sq. Foot no change
Finish Out Mixed Use- Commercial   Commercial Step Rate no change

Curb Cut- Established Driveway $100 Residential/$200 Commercial no change
Accessory Building $150 Residential or Commercial no change

Culvert Permit $100 Residential/$150 Commercial increased by $50 on 
both

Deck > 30” Above Ground $100 no change 
Demolition- Entire Building $100 no change 
Demolition- Interior $50 no change
Demolition- Pool $100 no change 
Fence $80 Residential/$160 Commercial no change
Foundation Repair $150 no change 
Gas Test $100 Residential/$200 Commercial no change 
Retaining Wall > 48” Tall $100 no change 
Siding $100 no change 

Registration for Un-Licensed 
Contractors

$100 Residential/Commerical 
no change 

Electrical, Gas, Mechanical, Plumbing 
Permit

$100 Residential/Commercial 
no change 

Solicitor's Registration $25.00 New fee
Solicitor's Idenitfication Badge $2.50  New fee 
Food Truck Permit Fee (Annual) $85.00 New fee
Food Truck Health Permit Fee 
(Annual) $130.00 New Fee 
Food Truck Reinspection Fee $50.00 New fee

Demolition Permit $100 no change
Carport/Canopy/Patio Cover $100 no change

Commercial

Mixed Use   

Other Charges 

Licenses, Registrations, and Trades

Other Charges



Construction Trailer $100 no change
Commercial Flat Work (Parking Lot) $200 no change 
Concrete Patio/Sidewalks $100 no change

Residential Flat Work (Patio Side 
Walls) 

$100 

no change
Garage Sale Free no change 
Miscellaneous  $80.00 New Fee
Move-In Manufactured Home $1,100 + Truck Fee plus direct no change
Move In- Truck $100 per truck no change
Roof $100 Residential/$200 Commercial no change
Sales Trailer $100 no change
Screening Wall $100 no change
Sign- Banner $75.00 no change
Sign- Permanent $150 no change
Solar Panels $150 no change

Water Heater $150 

no change
Window Replacement $75 no change

Excavation Permit 
2% of $2,500-$100,000 1% of $100.001- 

$200,000  1/2% of $200,000 New Fee

FIRE PERMIT DESCRIPTION FEE NO CHANGES ON THE 
FIRE PERMITS

Access Control $50.00 
Alarm System $100 per floor + $2.00 per device
Christmas Tree Lot $50.00 
Explosive and Blasting $50.00 
Fixed Extinguishing System $75.00 per system
Flammable / Combust Liquid / Tanks $50.00 
Fumigation / Thermal Insect Fog $50.00 
Hydrant Flow Test $50.00 
Liquid Petroleum Gases $25.00 
Mechanical Trench Burn $200 per day
Places of Assembly $50.00 
Sprinkler System – New $125 per riser / system + $0.012 per sf
Sprinkler System – Remodel – 
Between 0-40 heads

$50.00 

Sprinkler System – Remodel – 
    

III.               FIRE PREVENTION PERMITS



$100.00 
Standpipe System $100 per system
Tents / Canopies / Air Supported $50.00 
Underground Sprinkler System $50.00 
Oil and Gas Construction Permit $5,000.00 per well, per bore
Seismic Survey $1,000.00 
Appeal Fee $300.00

Restaurant $300 no change
Convenience Store $300 no change
Grocery Store $300 no change
Administration Fee for Annual Health $100 no change 
Food Establishment Re-Inspection Fee $120 no change

Seasonal Vendors (i.e., snow cones, 
ice cream truck)

$100 
no change 

Health Complaints $150 no change
OSSF- Septic Permit Package $410 no change
Water Well in City Limits $200 no change

Swimming Pool (Health Inspection by 
the County is seprate fee paid to the 
county- For Commerical Only )

$400 Residential/$450 Commercial 
Residential increased 
by $250/Commerical 

increased by $150
Administrative fee for Abatement $250.00 no change

Annexations
$500.00 plus direct expenses of 

professional consultants for review of 
application and submitted material. NO CHANGES ON 

PLATTING PERMITS 
Concept Plan $500.00 
Final Plat – Commercial $400.00 plus $50.00 per acre plus 

Final Plat – Residential

$400.00 plus $10.00 per lot for the 
first 10 lots and $7.00 per each 

additional lot plus $20.00 per acre for 
acres not platted into lots plus direct 
expenses of professional consultants 

for review of application and 
submitted material.

Planned Development $1000 Per PD plus direct expenses of 
Plat Abandonment $200.00 
Plat Revision $300.00 plus direct expenses of 

IV.        HEALTH & SANITARY INSPECTIONS & PERMITS

V.       CITY PLATTING PERMITS

     
Between 41 or more heads



Plat Revision Notice $20.00 per Notice
Preliminary Plat – Commercial $700.00 plus $50.00 per acre plus 

Preliminary Plat – Residential

$700.00 plus $20.00 per lot for the 
first 10 lots and $7.00 per each 

additional lot plus $25.00 per acre 
areas not platted into lots plus direct 
expenses of professional consultants 

for review of application and 
submitted material.

Re-Plat $100.00 plus $2.00 per lot plus direct 

Refunding of Fees

The City Secretary may refund moneys 
collected as fees, if the application is 

withdrawn and no expenses have 
been incurred by the City on the 

applicant’s behalf. Written request is 
required within ten (10) days by the 

applicant for the City Secretary to 
refund any inadvertent overcharges.

Resubmitted Final Plat $50.00 plus direct expenses of 
Resubmitted Preliminary Plat $50.00 plus direct expenses of 
Specific Use Permit $400.00 plus direct expenses of 

Variance

$400 per Variance plus $50 for each 
additional Variance Request within 

the same Application plus direct 
expenses of professional consultants 

for review of application and 
submitted material.

Zoning Change $400.00 plus direct expenses of 

Special Event Permit $25 no change
Park Pavilion Deposit- Refundable $100 no change
Park Pavilion Rental for Non- Resident $45 for 3-hours and $5 for each no change
Park Pavilion Rental for Residents of $32 for 3-hours and $5 for each no change
Farmers Market Vendor Permit (Non- $50 no change

Utility- Electric Release Free no change
Utility- Water Release Free no change
Utility and Pipeline Fees (Professional 
fees will be billed) $200 plus Professional Fees New charge

VI.          SPECIAL EVENT

VII.            UTILITY RELATED



DEVELOPMENT TYPE MAXIMUM ACCESSIBLE FEE
Single Family $2,828.79/Dwelling Unit no change
Mulit-Family $1,994.10/Dwelling Unit no change
Retail $10,283.78/ 1,000 Sq.    Foot no change
Basic $474.01/1,000 Sq. Foot no change
Service $2,653.35/1,000 Sq. Foot no change

VIII.            TRANSPORTATION IMPACT FEES


	20230313_WORK SESSION
	Municipal Court Judge Work Session Agenda Memo for 3.20.2023
	cc minutes 3-6-23
	ATLAS PSA Agenda Sheet (Mar. 6, 2023)
	RESOLUTION ATLAS PSA (Mar. 6, 2023)
	ATLAS Professional Services Agreement (Mar. 6 2023)
	Addendum A (Mar. 6, 2023)
	Wilson, Creasser, Stewart Road Improvements Agenda Sheet (Mar. 20, 2023)
	Wilson, Creasser, Stewart Reconstruction Costs (Mar. 20, 2023)
	Sheet1

	Wilson, Creasser, Stewart Resolution (Mar. 20, 2023)
	RESOLUTION
	202303-03-122
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:

	Strategic Plan Agenda Sheet (Mar. 20, 2023)
	New Fairivew Strategic Plan (Mar. 20. 2023)
	Resolution for Strategic Plan (Mar. 20, 2023)
	Master Fee Schedule Agenda Sheet (Mar. 20, 2023)
	Ordinance to Revise Master Fee Schedule (Mar. 20, 2023)
	AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS AMENDING THE MASTER FEE SCHEDULE ESTABLISHED BY ORDINANCE 1999-015-0042, AND FEE SCHEDULES ESTABLISHED BY ORDINANCES 2000-02-0062, 2000-10-0070, 2005-07-107, AND 202210-01-100 AS AMENDED AND AS IMPLEMENT...
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS, THAT:
	SECTION 2.

	ADP767C.tmp
	Sheet1




